
(Translation) 

 

Minutes of the 7th Meeting of 

Community Involvement, Culture and Recreation Committee, 

the 7th Term Kwun Tong District Council 

 

Date: 9 January 2025 (Thursday) 

Time: 2:30 p.m. – 3:14 p.m. 

Venue: Conference Room, Kwun Tong District Office, 

Unit 05-07, 20/F, Millennium City 6, 392 Kwun Tong Road, 

Kwun Tong, Kowloon 

 

Present  

Mr WONG Chun-ping, MH, JP (Chairman) Ms CHING Hoi-yan 

Mr MA Yat-chiu, MH (Vice-chairman) Ms FENG Yunsi 

Mr YU Siu-lun Mr WONG Kai-san 

Mr NG Ting-fung Ms YU Juliana 

Mr LUI Tung-hai, MH Mr AU YEUNG Kwan-nok 

Ms LEE Shuk-woon, Sophia Mr CHENG Keung-fung 

Mr LEE Ka-hang Mr LAI Wing-chun, MH 

Ms KAM Kin Mr KAN Ming-tung, MH 

Mr OR Chong-shing, Wilson, MH Mr TAM Siu-cheuk 

Mr CHEUNG Yiu-pan Mr KWAN Kin-wing 

Ms LEUNG Sze-wan Mr PANG Chi-sang 

Mr HSU Yau-wai Mr LIN Tin-yi (Co-opted Member) 

Mr TSANG Wing-fai Mr LEUNG Ki-sum (Co-opted Member)  

  

In Attendance  

Ms CHAN Wai-chun, Regina Assistant District Officer (Kwun Tong)1 

Mr CHOW Lap-kan, Douglas Senior Executive Officer (District Council), 

Kwun Tong District Office 

Miss TANG Wai-yan Senior Manager (Kowloon East), 

Leisure and Cultural Services Department 

Ms CHU Pui-shan, Edith Manager (Kowloon East) Marketing, Programme and District Activities, 

Leisure and Cultural Services Department 

Ms SIU Sau-king, Michelle Deputy District Leisure Manager (District Support) Kwun Tong, 

Leisure and Cultural Services Department  

Ms WONG Sze-wan Senior Librarian (Kwun Tong), 

Leisure and Cultural Services Department 

Mr TAI Man-chun, Allen Senior School Development Officer (Kwun Tong)2, 



2 

 

Education Bureau 

  

Secretary  

Ms TSOI Hung-man, Anna Executive Officer (District Council)(2), 

Kwun Tong District Office 

 

 

Opening Remarks 

 

 The Chairman welcomed all Members of the Community Involvement, Culture and 

Recreation Committee (“CICRC”) and government representatives to the 7th meeting of CICRC 

under the 7th Term Kwun Tong District Council (“KTDC”). 

 

2. The Chairman said that the Secretariat had not received any notice of absence from Members 

before the meeting. 

 

 

I. Confirmation of Minutes of the 6th Meeting of CICRC 

 

3. The Secretariat had earlier circulated the draft minutes of the last meeting to all Members.  

Members had not raised any other comments prior to and during the meeting.  The minutes of the 

6th meeting were confirmed. 

 

 

II. Report on Arts and Cultural Activities to be Organised by Leisure and Cultural Services 

Department (“LCSD”) in Kwun Tong District in 2025/26 

(KTDC CICRC Paper No. 1/2025) 

 

4. The representative of LCSD presented the paper. 

 

5. Members suggested that LCSD (i) list the actual attendance for Members’ reference after 

completion of the activities; (ii) distribute tickets for the trial programmes of the East Kowloon 

Cultural Centre (“EKCC”) to Care Teams and District Council members and collect their feedback 

on the activities; and (iii) incorporate more Chinese cultural elements into arts and cultural activities 

to deepen young people’s understanding of the Motherland.  

 

6. The representative of LCSD responded to Members’ views and enquires as follows:  

 



3 

 

6.1 LCSD extended its gratitude to Members for their views and stated that it would 

review the effectiveness of the activities.  

 

6.2 Regarding the trial programmes of EKCC, LCSD thanked Members for their support 

and said that their views would be relayed to the responsible personnel.  

 

6.3 Regarding activities promoting Chinese culture, LCSD said that the Love and Faith 

Cantonese Opera Laboratory, an arts group under the 18dART Community Arts 

Scheme, would organise a series of promotional activities to promote Chinese 

culture.  

 

7. The Chairman hoped that LCSD would continue to promote Chinese culture by organising 

activities.  

 

8. Members noted the paper. 

 

 

III. Recreation and Sports Programmes to be Organised by LCSD in Kwun Tong District 

between April 2025 and March 2026 

(KTDC CICRC Paper No. 2/2025) 

 

9. The representative of LCSD presented the paper. 

 

10. Members raised follow-up views and enquiries as follows:  

 

10.1 Members enquired about the reason for LCSD’s selection of billiards as the district 

sports activity with local characteristics in Kwun Tong District, as well as the 

effectiveness of the relevant activities.  

 

10.2 Members pointed out that the paper showed that LCSD planned to organise 35 

billiards activities in 2025/26, with an estimated attendance of approximately 888, 

and enquired how LCSD arrived at these figures.  

 

10.3 Members enquired whether LCSD would strengthen the promotion of the sports 

events of the 15th National Games (“NG”). 

 

10.4 Members enquired whether LCSD would formally designate new sports as recreation 

and sports activities, thereby enabling the public to apply for venues to conduct 



4 

 

related activities.  

 

10.5 Members enquired whether LCSD would develop sports incorporating artificial 

intelligence (“AI”) elements. 

 

10.6 Members enquired whether LCSD had increased the frequency of “Briefing on 

Proper Ways to Use Fitness Equipment” (“Briefing”) sessions and also enquired 

about the waiting list mechanism.  

 

10.7 Members enquired whether LCSD had formulated guidelines for the reference of 

organisations interested in co-organising new sports-related activities with the 

Department.  

 

10.8 Members enquired about the operations of the 28 sports clubs in Kwun Tong District.  

 

11. The representative of LCSD responded to Members’ views and enquiries as follows: 

 

11.1 Regarding the reason for choosing billiards as the district sports activity with local 

characteristics, LCSD explained that Shun Lee Tsuen Sports Centre in Kwun Tong 

District was the only billiard centre under LCSD equipped with both billiard tables 

and American pool tables.  The centre was also the largest facility of its kind under 

LCSD’s management.  Apart from being available for public booking, it also 

provided a dedicated training venue for the Hong Kong billiard representative squad, 

organisations and schools, further promoting the sport.  As for the effectiveness of 

the activities, LCSD noted that billiards activities were usually fully booked and were 

particularly popular with students.  

 

11.2 Regarding the number of billiards activities and participants, LCSD pointed out that 

the figures represented the total estimated number of activities and participants for 

the American Pool Training Courses, Snooker Training Courses and Billiard Fun 

Day.  

 

11.3 Regarding NG, LCSD said that Hong Kong would stage eight competition events 

this year, including basketball, track cycling, fencing, golf, handball (men), rugby 

sevens, triathlon and beach volleyball, as well as a mass participation event—

bowling.  At the district level, LCSD noted that all 18 districts would later organise 

various activities to support and promote NG.  

 



5 

 

11.4 Regarding new sports, LCSD said that the New Sports Fun Day would be coordinated 

by the LCSD headquarters and would promote one of the six new sports: dodgeball, 

dodgebee, kin-ball, korfball, pickleball or tchoukball.  In addition, LCSD stated that 

new sports would not be formally designated as regular recreational and sports 

activities until they had developed to a certain extent and achieved sufficient 

participation.  Therefore, LCSD would continue to assist in promoting new sports.  

 

11.5 Regarding the development of sports incorporating AI elements, LCSD responded 

that it would consider the feasibility of incorporating AI elements as an auxiliary 

feature in specific sports events.  

 

11.6 Regarding the operation of the 28 sports clubs in Kwun Tong District, LCSD said 

that all the listed sports clubs were operating normally.  LCSD staff would assist 

different sports clubs in booking venues and promoting their activities.  The 

Community Sports Club Unit of LCSD would regularly follow up and review the 

operations of different sports clubs.  

 

11.7 Regarding the Briefing, LCSD said that the number of briefing sessions held this year 

remained the same as last year.  As the briefing sessions were highly popular among 

the public, LCSD currently conducted computer balloting from the 1st to the 7th of 

each month.  In addition, LCSD pointed out that if participants were absent from 

the briefing session or failed to complete the check-in procedure, their spots would 

be allocated to those waiting on-site.  

 

12. Members suggested that LCSD provide them with detailed information about the 28 sports 

clubs in Kwun Tong District after the meeting.  

 

13. The representative of LCSD noted Members’ views and stated that detailed information would 

be provided later.  

 

14. Members noted the paper.  

 

 

IV. Promotional Activities to be Organised by Public Libraries of LCSD in Kwun Tong 

District between April 2025 and March 2026 

(KTDC CICRC Paper No. 3/2025) 

 

15. The representative of LCSD presented the paper. 



6 

 

 

16. Members raised follow-up views and enquiries as follows:  

 

16.1 Members noticed that the libraries had previously organised activities with themes 

related to the War of Resistance Against Japanese Aggression and Hong Kong’s 

return to the Motherland, and suggested that LCSD provide relevant information to 

both Members and Care Teams.  

 

16.2 Members enquired whether LCSD had organised any publicity and promotional 

activities for National Security Education Day or Constitution Day.  

 

17. The representative of LCSD responded that it would continue to distribute promotional 

materials for activities to Members and Care Teams in the future to enhance promotional 

effectiveness.  In addition, LCSD would hold a book display on national security education in the 

Lam Tin Public Library in April.  Details of the event would be reported to Members.  

 

18. Members noted the paper.  

 

 

V. Report on Arts and Cultural Activities Organised by LCSD in Kwun Tong District 

(KTDC CICRC Paper No. 4/2025) 

 

19. The representative of LCSD presented the paper. 

 

20. Members noted the paper.  

 

 

VI. Report on Recreation and Sports Programmes Organised by LCSD in Kwun Tong 

District  

(KTDC CICRC Paper No. 5/2025) 

 

21. The representative of LCSD presented the paper. 

 

22. Members noted the paper. 

 

 

VII. Report on Promotional Activities Organised by Public Libraries of LCSD in Kwun Tong 

District  



7 

 

(KTDC CICRC Paper No. 6/2025) 

 

23. The representative of LCSD presented the paper. 

 

24. Members noted the paper. 

 

 

VIII. Any Other Business 

 

25. Members did not raise other items for discussion. 

 

 

IX. Date of Next Meeting 

 

26. The next meeting was scheduled to be held at 2:30 p.m. on 13 March 2025 (Thursday). 

 

27. There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:14 p.m. 

 

 

The minutes of the meeting were confirmed on 13 March 2025. 

 

 

Kwun Tong District Council Secretariat 

March 2025 


